
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 

 
Date: TUESDAY, 13 OCTOBER 2015 

Time: 11.00 am 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, 2ND FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

 
Members: Deputy Dr Giles Shilson (Chairman) 

Deputy John Tomlinson (Deputy Chairman) 
Lucy Frew 
Deputy Catherine McGuinness 
Sir Brian McMaster  
Judith Pleasance 
Keith Salway  
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Gregory Moore  

tel. no.: 020 7332 1399 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in the Guildhall Club at the rising of the Committee 

N.B. Part of this meeting could be the subject of audio or visual recording 
 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To approve the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 9 June 2015. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
4. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS 
 Report of the Town Clerk. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
5. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
 Report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 7 - 14) 

 
6. BRIBERY ACT 2010 
 Report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 15 - 20) 

 
7. PROCESS FOR CONTRACTING COMMERCIAL CLIENTS 
 Report of the Chief Operating & Financial Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 21 - 22) 

 
8. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE 
 
9. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
10. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
 MOTION – That under Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 

excluded from the meeting for the following items, on the grounds that they involve 
the likely disclosure of Exempt Information, as defined in Part 1, of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 

  
11. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES 
 To approve the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2015. 
 For Decision 
 (Pages 23 - 26) 

 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

12. RISK REGISTER 
 Report of the Chief Operating & Financial Officer. 
 For Information 
 (Pages 27 - 68) 

 
13. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 

COMMITTEE 
 
14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND 

WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE 
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



RISK COMMITTEE OF THE BARBICAN CENTRE BOARD 
 

Tuesday, 9 June 2015  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board held at 
Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Tuesday, 9 June 2015 at 

11.00 am 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Deputy Dr Giles Shilson (Chairman) 
Deputy John Tomlinson (Deputy Chairman) 
Deputy Catherine McGuinness 
Sir Brian McMaster  
Judith Pleasance 
Keith Salway  
 

 

In Attendance 
 
Officers: 
Sir Nicholas Kenyon Managing Director, Barbican Centre 

Michael Dick Director of Operations & Buildings, Barbican Centre 

Leonora Thomson Director of Audiences & Development, Barbican Centre 

Chris Harris Head of Internal Audit, Chamberlain's Department 

Sarah Wall Group Accountant, Chamberlain's Department 

Gregory Moore Town Clerk's Department 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES  
There were none. 
 
The Chairman took the opportunity to welcome Judith Pleasance to her first 
meeting of the Risk Committee and to thank Jeremy Simons, a former Member 
of the Committee, who had stood down from the Board in April. He also 
welcomed Chris Harris, the interim Head of Internal Audit, to his first Barbican 
Risk Committee meeting. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN 
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were none. 
 

3. MINUTES  
The public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 20 January 2015 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



4. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
The Committee received a report of the Head of Audit & Risk Management 
providing an update on the internal audit reviews undertaken since the last 
meeting and presenting the forthcoming audit plan for Members’ review. 
 
A Member observed that the Committee had previously been provided with a 
longer term view of the proposed audit plan, stretching over a four to five year 
window. The Head of Internal Audit advised that there had been a move in 
recent times to focus on the single year overview due to the high level of 
organisational change which was ongoing; however, he was conscious that a 
broad overview of the longer term plans would be helpful to Members and 
undertook to provide such for the next meeting alongside this single year 
spotlight. 
 
In respect of the individual reviews planned, it was suggested that the 
International Enterprise review should be brought forward given it was a 
potentially high risk area of activity. The importance of keeping the box office 
review as a high priority was also noted. 
 
The Committee discussed the whistleblowing policy set out at appendix three to 
the report. Whilst observing that the policy was admirably comprehensive and 
robust, it was noted that the communication of this policy to staff was of vital 
importance as the document in this format did not make it helpful or clear to 
staff as to what steps they should take. The execution of this communication 
was queried, with it noted that a lack of awareness amongst staff as to how to 
go about whistleblowing potentially construed a risk in itself. The Managing 
Director was asked to report back on how this communication was managed at 
the Centre; the Chairman added that he would also raise this matter with the 
Establishment Committee from a Corporation perspective. 
 
RESOLVED: That:- 

 The final delivery position for the 2014/15 Internal Audit Plan be noted; 
and  

 The updated Internal Audit Plan for 2015/16 be approved, subject to the 
bringing forward of the international enterprise and box office reviews. 

 
5. BARBICAN HALL: RECENT INCIDENT AND LESSONS LEARNT  

The Committee received a report of the Director of Arts setting out the 
background to a recent incident at the Barbican Hall, where a number of 
audience members engaged in a stage invasion. Members were also informed 
of the steps taken since the incident to further strengthen preventative 
measures and highlight similar risks in future. 
 
In response to queries, it was explained that the incident had occurred partly 
due to a process error which had meant that the appropriate risk assessment 
forms were not completed. As a result, protocols which would normally have 
been put in place for such an event, such as bag searches and the hiring of 
additional security staff, had not been implemented. The tightening of the risk 
assessment process would therefore act to mitigate against the risk of similar 
incidents in future. 

Page 2



With reference to the wider issue of potentially controversial events, Members 
were agreed that it was vitally important for the arts to continue to embrace 
controversy and new acts and audiences. It was noted that a list of relevant 
events was shared regularly with the Chairman and Deputy Chairman so as to 
keep them apprised of such performances but without inhibiting or impinging 
upon the Centre’s creative freedom. 
 
Following queries around the recouping of costs associated with additional 
security requirements, the Director of Audiences & Development undertook to 
clarify the position and report back outside of the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted. 
 

6. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE 
COMMITTEE  
There were no questions. 
 

7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was one urgent item: 
 
Oracle Update 
The Committee received a report of the Chamberlain providing an explanation 
behind the scheduling of the Oracle Update and the impact of its delay. 
 
Members noted the explanations set out and the particular position in respect of 
the Barbican’s accounting processes, which had meant that they had been 
affected by the delay to a much more significant degree than other Corporation 
departments or institutions. It was observed that the problems had seemed 
significantly more noteworthy at the time than had been represented in the 
report; a reference in a report going to the Corporation’s Finance Committee 
later that day was also noted, which downplayed the issue. The Deputy 
Chairman undertook to raise the issue at the Finance Committee meeting, to 
ensure that appropriate lessons were learnt. 
 
It was asked whether the licensing arrangements with Oracle were such that 
associated entities (for instance, Drum Works) would be covered. The 
Chamberlain agreed to look in to this and report back in due course. 
 

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
RESOLVED – That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds 
that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act. 
 

9. NON PUBLIC MINUTES  
The non-public minutes of the meeting held on 20 January 2015 were approved 
as a correct record. 
 
 
 

Page 3



10. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS  
The Board noted the outstanding actions list and received updates on the items 
thereon. 
 
RECEIVED. 
 

11. RISK REGISTER  
The Committee received a report of the Chief Operating & Financial Officer 
advising Members of the risk management system in place at the Barbican, 
updating on the significant risks that had been identified and outlining measures 
for mitigation of these risks. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted. 
 

12. PROCEDURES IN PLACE IN THE EVENT OF ARTIST CANCELLATIONS  
The Committee received a report of the Director of Audiences & Development 
outlining the various procedures in place in the event of artist cancellation. 
 
RESOLVED: That the report be received and its content noted. 
 

13. NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF 
THE COMMITTEE  
There was one question. 
 

14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED  
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
 
The meeting ended at 12.10 pm 
 
 
 

 

Chairman 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Gregory Moore  
tel. no.: 020 7332 1399 
gregory.moore@cityoflondon.gov.uk 
 

Page 4



Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 
Outstanding actions 2015 

 

 

 
Action 

 
Notes/Description 

Officer 
responsible 

Date 
added 

Status 

Bribery Act Consideration on implications of the Bribery Act to take 
place at a future meeting. 

Chief 
Operating & 
Financial 
Officer 

October 
2014 

Report produced and on 
agenda for October meeting. 

Whistleblowing Managing Director to report back on how communication 
around the whistleblowing policy was managed at the 
Centre. 

Head of 
Internal Audit 

June 
2015 

Oral update to be provided at 
October meeting. 

Artist Cancellations 
 

To explore if it would be possible to offer a credit note when 
informing people of cancellations. 

Director of 
Audiences & 
Development 

June 
2015 

Oral update to be provided at 
October meeting. 

Risk Register - Risk on Centre for Music to be included in Register 
- Explanation of tendering issues concerning specific 

lighting works to be provided 

Managing 
Director 

June 
2015 

- Risk now included 
- Explanatory note provided 

Bad Debts/Write-Offs Explanation of event booking process and procurement of 
fees in advance of events to be provided. 

Head of 
Finance 

January 
2015 

On agenda for October 
meeting. 

Oracle Update To explore whether the licensing arrangements for Oracle 
would cover third party users such as Drum Works. 

Chamberlain June 
2015 

Oral update to be provided at 
October meeting. 

Security Costs Confirmation to be provided as to whether additional 
security costs associated with some acts were recouped 
from artists. 

Director of 
Audiences & 
Development 

June 
2015 

Oral update to be provided at 
October meeting. 

Centre for Music To provide an opportunity for Board Members to comment 
on emerging CfM findings. 

Managing 
Director 

June 
2015 

Interim report circulated; 
meeting to discuss draft final 
report held on 3 September. 

 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 6



 Committee: Date: 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 13 October 2015 

Subject:  

Internal Audit Update Report 
 

Public 

Report of: 

Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

For Information 

 

 
Summary 

This report provides an update on Internal Audit activity undertaken at the Barbican 
Centre since the last report in June 2015.  Delivery of 2015-16 planned reviews is 
analysed at Appendix 1. 

Since the last Committee update report one piece of audit work has been 
progressed to completion, a review of Barbican International Enterprise is in 
progress, the terms of reference have been agreed for the review of Budget-Setting 
and Financial Management, and draft terms of reference have been circulated for 
the review of Box Office Income.  
 
A review of Cost Estimating and Cost Planning was finalised in August 2015 and 
resulted in a substantial assurance rating.   This audit sought to ensure that major 
project costs are properly estimated and planned with appropriate budgets set prior 
to project works commencing on site.  One amber priority recommendation was 
made of the City Corporation’s Town Clerk’s Department in relation to a Gateway 
report template and it is understood that this was implemented by 31August 2015. A 
green priority recommendation was made to reinstate the log of lessons learnt in 
project delivery and was agreed by Barbican Centre management with an 
implementation date of 30 November 2015. 
 
There are no outstanding amber priority recommendations as at mid-September 
2015 and only three live green priority recommendations which are awaiting follow-
up.   

Recommendation(s): 

Members are asked to note the delivery position for the 2015-16 Internal Audit 
Plan, the outcome of reviews completed to date and the proposed areas of 
coverage for forthcoming reviews. 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 
1. This report provides an update on audit work progressed since 9 June 2015 

Committee and includes a summary of the status of all 2015-16 reviews 
(Appendix 1).  Analysis of outstanding audit recommendations as at mid-
September 2015 confirmed that there are no live red or amber priority issues.    

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Internal Audit Review Outcomes 2015/16 
 
Delivery of Internal Audit Work 
 
4. An analysis of the status and outcome of reviews within the 2015-16 audit plan is 

attached at Appendix 1.  One audit review – outlined below – has been finalised, 
one review is in progress, the terms of reference have been agreed for a review 
and fieldwork initiation is imminent, and draft terms of reference have been 
prepared for another review.  It is intended that the scope and timing of the 
remaining reviews within the audit plan will be confirmed with management by 31 
October 2015 to facilitate full plan delivery by 31 March 2016. 
 

5. The finalised review of Cost Estimating and Cost Planning was focused on the 
arrangements for ensuring that projects are delivered within agreed budgets to 
support overall achievement of the Capital Cap Programme. The review sought to 
obtain reasonable assurance that an adequate control environment is in place 
and to ensure that major project costs are properly estimated and planned with 
appropriate budgets set prior to project works commencing on site.  Testing also 
considered whether actual project expenditure is compared with original project 
estimates to identify key variances and improve cost estimation in future.  
 

6. The review resulted in a substantial (green) assurance opinion, concluding that: 
 

 There are adequate arrangements in place for preparing cost estimates at 
Gateway 2-4 of the City’s project procedure.  

 Reasonable assurance was obtained that Project Managers use estimated 
project costs (Gateway 2-3) to verify the reasonableness of tender prices 
obtained at Gateway 5.  

 There are adequate controls in place to ensure that appropriate budgets are 
set at Gateway 5, prior to work on site commencing.  

 Controls are in place to review actual project costs against agreed project 
sums at project completion; this helps to ensure that lessons in respect of cost 
estimation are learnt in future.  

 
7. An amber priority recommendation was made of the Town Clerk’s Department to 

update the Gateway 7 report template to require officers to set out whether 
project specifications were delivered in full and as agreed at Gateway 5, and to 
set out key reasons why they were not.  This recommendation has been 
implemented.   
 

8. A green priority recommendation was raised for the Barbican’s Head of Projects 
to reinstate a centralised log of project lessons learnt, recording matters identified 
on Gateway 7 reports.  The Head of Projects undertook to implement the 
following by 30 November 2015 and this will be followed up on the due date.   

 

9. The review of Barbican International Enterprise is in progress and is anticipated 
to be completed by 31 October 2015.  The scope of the audit is an evaluation of 
the adequacy of the arrangements in place regarding the development and 
delivery of a programme of touring exhibitions and the financial management 
provisions to ensure that value for money is achieved. 

Page 8



10. The terms of reference for the review of Budget-Setting and Financial 
Management have been agreed and fieldwork commencement is expected by 30 
September 2015.  The audit will seek to: 

 

 Evaluate the adequacy of budget-setting arrangements and the mechanism to 
ensure that this accords with Barbican priorities, for example Artistic Strategy.    

 Determine whether sufficient relevant, reliable and timely information is 
available to budget holders (including forecasts of the year end position). 

 Identify whether significant budgetary variations are analysed, investigated, 
explained and acted upon by budget holders. 

 Ensure there is regular, timely and accurate reporting of budgetary position to 
Committee such that prompt, informed decisions may be made. 

 Assess if the integrity of the financial ledger and its records are assured 
through interface from feeder systems and periodic reconciliation of the 
general ledger to the bank account(s), creditors and debtors systems. 

 
11. Draft terms of reference have been produced for the Box Office review deferred 

from 2014-15 and delivery will be prioritised within quarter 3 of 2015-16. The 
scope and timing of the remaining planned audits – Bars, Membership Scheme 
and IT System Controls are to be discussed with Barbican Centre management to 
facilitate delivery by the end of the financial year.  
 

Other Relevant Assurance Work  
 
12. Delivery of the plan of corporate and key systems reviews across the City’s’ 

departments is on-going, providing assurance over a range of arrangements 
relevant to the Barbican Centre.   
 

13. A corporate review of Expenses (including out of pocket, travel and subsistence 
claims) is in progress and has incorporated testing of Barbican Centre 
transactions.  The review is focused on the controls to ensure that only valid 
business related expenses are incurred and that the cost of expenses are 
claimed in line with established policies and guidance.  Testing is also 
considering the adequacy of arrangements to ensure that expenses are properly 
coded in Oracle R12 to help ensure the accuracy of financial management 
information.  Details of the outcome will be reported to the next meeting of this 
Committee, once the review has been finalised.   
 

Implementation of Audit Recommendations 
 
14. Two recommendations have arisen from the full assurance review finalised since 

the last meeting of this Committee, one of which (green priority) was addressed to 
Barbican Centre management and has not yet been subject to follow-up. 
 

15.  There are two further green priority recommendations which are awaiting formal 
follow-up and no live red or amber recommendations as at mid-September 2015. 

 
 
 
 

Page 9



Conclusion 
 
16. Delivery of the 2015-16 audit plan is progressing to target and further liaison is 

intended with Barbican Centre management to agree the scope and timing of 
reviews not yet initiated.  Barbican Centre management have accepted the green 
priority recommendation arising from a recent review and there are two further 
green priority recommendations awaiting Internal Audit follow-up.  As at mid-
September 2015 there are no live red or amber recommendations arising from 
any Internal Audit work in respect of the Barbican Centre.  

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Internal Audit Plan Schedule of Projects 2015-16 
 
Chris Harris, Head of Audit and Risk Management 
E: Chris.Harris@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 10



Appendix 1 
 

Scheduled Work Internal Audit Plan 2015/16 
 

Project Planned 
Days 

Current 
Stage 

Completion 
Date 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Cost Estimating and Cost Planning 
 
Review of arrangements to ensure that 
major project costs are properly 
estimated and planned with 
appropriate budgets set prior to project 
works commencing on site.  The audit 
will also look to obtain reasonable 
assurance that actual project 
expenditure is compared with original 
project estimates to identify key 
variances and improve cost estimation 
in future. 
 

 
 

25 

 
 

Final 
Report 

 
 

31 August 
2015 

 
 

Substantial 

 
 

0 

 
 

1 

 
 

1 

 
 

2 

Barbican International Enterprise 
 

Evaluation of the adequacy of the 
arrangements in place regarding the 
development and delivery of a 
programme of touring exhibitions and 
the financial management provisions 
to ensure that value for money is 
achieved. 
 
 

 
 

20 

 
 

In progress 

 
 

31 October 
2015 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

P
age 11



Project Planned 
Days 

Current 
Stage 

Completion 
Date 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

Budget-Setting and Financial 
Management 
 
The purpose of this review is to 
ascertain how the Barbican Centre 
sets a budget that is flexible at a time 
of economic uncertainty and 
addresses the commercial, artistic and 
educational aspects of the Centre’s 
programme. It will also examine 
budget monitoring and the accuracy of 
financial performance reporting. 
 

 
 
 

15 

 
 
 

TOR 
agreed 

 
 
 

30Novembe
r 2015 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

 
 
 
- 

Box Office  
 
An examination of the process for 
determining how productions are 
priced so that audiences will be 
attracted to purchase tickets, as well 
as the relationship between the 
contribution to costs and the scope 
that the Centre has for setting prices in 
a competitive environment. 
 

 
 

15 

 
 

Draft TOR 
issued 

 
 

To be 
confirmed 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

Bars 
 
An examination of the key controls in 
respect of cash-handling, stock control 
and reporting arrangements (including 

 
 

7 

 
 

Not started 

 
 

To be 
confirmed 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

P
age 12



Project Planned 
Days 

Current 
Stage 

Completion 
Date 

Assurance 
Rating 

Recommendations 

Total 
Red 

Total 
Amber 

Total 
Green 

Total 

use of the new EPOS system) for the 
in-house operation of the bars. 
  

Membership Scheme 
 
Review of uptake and the 
arrangements to ensure that benefits 
are realised. 
 

 
 

10 

 
 

Not started 

 
 

To be 
confirmed 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

IT – System Controls 
 
Application review. 
 

 
 

7 
 

 
 

Not started 

 
 

To be 
confirmed 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 
 
 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



Committee: 
 

Date: 
 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board 13 October 2015 
 

Subject: 
Bribery Act 2010 

Public 
 

Report of: 
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

For Information 
 

 
 

Summary 
 

This report provides information on the Bribery Act as requested by the Committee. 
The Bribery Act 2010 came into force on 01 July 2011. This paper is intended to 
explain the legislation to the Committee. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 

 
Members are asked to note the report. 
 

 
Main Report 

 
Background 
 
1. The Bribery Act came in to force on 01 July 2011. It provides a modern and 

comprehensive scheme of bribery offences that will enable courts and 
prosecutors to respond more effectively to bribery in the UK or abroad.  

 
What does the act do? 
 
2. The Bribery Act 2010 replaces the disjointed and complex offences at common 

law and in the Prevention of Corruption Acts 1889-1916. 
 

a. Creates two general offences covering the offering, promising or giving of 
an advantage, and requesting, agreeing to receive or accepting of an 
advantage. 

b. Introduced a corporate offence of failure to prevent bribery by persons 
working on behalf of a business. An organisation can avoid conviction if it 
can show that it has adequate procedures in place to prevent bribery. 

c. Made it a criminal offence to give, promise or offer a bribe and to receive 
or accept a bribe either at home or abroad.  The measures also cover 
bribery of a foreign public official. 

d. Increased the maximum penalty for bribery from seven years to 10 years 
imprisonment, with an unlimited fine. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 
What does this mean? 
 
3. A base understanding of the legislative offences is essential in order to assess 

the risk level present within the Barbican and the level of adequate procedures 
that need to be implemented to achieve satisfactory and proportionate 
compliance.   
 

4. Essentially the Act defines bribery, in the simplest form, as anything that induces 
or intends to induce improper performance.  There are four offences within the 
Act: 

 

 Offering, promising or giving a bribe.  

 Requesting, agreeing to receive or accepting a bribe.  

 Bribing a foreign public official.  

 A corporate offence of failing to prevent bribery.  

In respect of the first two, more general offences, improper performance can be 
explained as the party receiving the inducement would be deemed to have 
behaved improperly if they, in carrying out the relevant function or activity, such 
as awarding a contract, were expected to act in good faith, impartially or in 
accordance with a position of trust.   

5. Legally an inducement is a pledge or promise that causes an individual to enter 
into a particular agreement. There is an element of proportionality when 
considering what could be construed as an inducement. 
 

6. A person committing the offence of bribery does not have to be the person who 
physically receives the inducement; the crime can be committed either through 
direct action or through a third party. 
 

7. The legislation is far reaching and has liabilities attached to offerings where an 
inducement, offered by an organisation is declined by the intended receiver; the 
consideration is whether the offer benefited or could have benefited the target 
organisation. 
 

8. The third offence which relates to bribing a foreign public official includes bribing 
anyone working for ‘a foreign government entity’ at any level.  The Act again goes 
further to include those organisations which perform ‘functions of a public nature’ 
which could include organisations such as privatised utility companies.  
 

9. In addition to proving any of the three prior offences, to fall foul of the corporate 
offence, a person needs to be deemed to be connected to an organisation.  This 
connection could be found if they perform services on the organisation’s behalf 
including, but not limited to being employees, agents, intermediaries, joint 
ventures or subsidiaries.   
 

Page 16



10. Once a person has been shown to have committed any of the three offences and 
found to be connected to an organisation which comes under the Act’s 
jurisdiction beyond all reasonable doubt, the burden of proof falls upon the 
organisation to defend that they had not negligently failed to prevent a bribe; the 
test for this is on the balance of probabilities. This can be achieved by 
demonstrating implementation of adequate procedures and how they are 
embedded within the organisation’s culture and governance framework. 
 

 
How does the Bribery Act impact upon the Barbican? 
 
11. The legislative requirements bind all individuals and organisations defined with 

the Act.   
 

12. Consequences of not implementing adequate procedures should bribery be 
found at the Barbican include: 
 

a. Risk of organisation being penalised with an unlimited fine.   

b. Serious reputational damage sustained, impacting on the standing of the 
organisation amongst its peers, staff morale, public image and regulatory 
bodies through revealing an ineffective governance framework.  

c. Financial loss sustained through non-award of contracts which represent 
best value for money as a result of contracts awarded subjectively from 
inducements. 

d. Conviction of the corporate offence can result in disbarment under both 
EU and US rules. 

13. Ensuring the legislation and the adequate procedures become embedded in the 
organisation’s existing framework and control environment not only provides 
compliance with the legal framework but more than that, it is indicative of strong 
governance arrangements.  In the following two sections, this report seeks to 
explain the guidance issued by the Ministry of Justice and how this practically 
and proportionately can be incorporated into existing Barbican structures.   
 

 
Adequate Procedures 
 
14. The Ministry of Justice has issued guidance on the adequate procedures deemed 

necessary to defend a charge of negligently failing to prevent a bribe. These are 
based on six core principles.  

Principle One – Proportionate Procedures 

15. An organisation’s procedures to prevent bribery by persons associated with it are 
proportionate to the bribery risks it faces and to the nature, scale and complexity 
of the organisation’s activities. They need to be clear, practical, accessible, 
effectively implemented and enforced. 

Page 17



 Articulate the anti-bribery stance by having an anti-bribery policy dovetailing 
it into Codes of Conduct and relevant policies (Whistleblowing, Gifts and 
Hospitality, Declaration of Interests, Recruitment, Procurement, 
charitable/political donations and facilitation payments etc). 

 Ensure transparency and recording of decision-making. 

 Make clear what the penalties are. 

 Communicate to all levels within the organisation. 

Principle Two - Top Level Commitment 

16. The top level management of an organisation (be it a board of directors, the 
Committees, SMG, Team Leaders) are committed to preventing bribery by 
persons associated with it. They foster a culture within the organisation in which 
bribery is never acceptable. 
 

a. Get involved in developing the anti-bribery stance and be able to 
demonstrate how you’re doing it. 

b. Communicate and tailor it to your audience. 

c. Lead by example. 

Principle Three - Risk Assessment 

17. The organisation assesses the nature and extent of its exposure to potential 
external and internal risks of bribery on its behalf by persons associated with it. 
The assessment is periodic, informed and documented. 
 

a. Look at your procurement and commercial activities- what do you buy/sell, 
who to, where and how? 

b. Think ‘Country/Sector/Transaction/Business Opportunity/Business 
Partnerships’. 

c. Document your reasoning and re-visit regularly. 

Principle Four - Due Diligence 

18. The organisation applies due diligence procedures, taking a proportionate and 
risk based approach, in respect of persons who perform or will perform services 
for or on behalf of the organisation, in order to mitigate identified bribery risks. 
 

a. Think of who performs services for you and how you are re-assured (or 
not) that they won’t bribe on your behalf. 

b. Look at your recruitment, HR and partnering processes – are the checks 
made proportionate to the risk? 

Page 18



c. Look for previous history/track-record and financial indicators of 
distress/pressure. 

Principle Five – Communication (including training) 

19. The organisation seeks to ensure that its bribery prevention policies and 
procedures are embedded and understood throughout the organisation through 
internal and external communication, including training that is proportionate to the 
risks it faces. 
 

a. Consider who you need to tell. 

b. Consider content, language and tone…it may need to be tailored to suit. 

c. How best can you roll it out?  Face to face, e-learning, intranet. 

d. Remind of stance, ethics, policies, processes and how to report concerns. 

Principle Six –Monitoring and Review 

20. The organisation monitors and reviews procedures designed to prevent bribery 
by persons associated with it and makes improvements where necessary. 
 

a. Revisit as often as proportionate.  Business changes and so do the risks. 

b. Keep it simple or go for the ‘belts and braces’ approach?  Monitor 
transactions again in proportion to the risk. 

c. Get external re-assurance that what you are doing is adequate. 

 
Chris Harris  
Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 
 
E: chris.harris@cityoflondon.gov.uk] 
 

Page 19

mailto:chris.harris@cityoflondon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Committee(s): Date(s): 

Risk Committee of the Barbican Centre Board  13 October 2015 

Subject:  

Process for contracting Commercial Clients 

 

Public 

 

Report of: 

Chief Operating and Financial Officer  

For Information 

 

                                                        
Summary 

 
This report sets out the process in place for contracting Commercial events.  

Recommendation(s) 

Members are asked to: 
 

 Note the report. 

 
Main Report 

 
 

Background 

 
1. Members previously expressed an interest in understanding the full process 

that takes place when contracting commercial events, with particular interest 
around the elements that will help to reduce / eliminate bad debt. 
 

2. This paper provides a brief summary of this process for Members’ information. 
 
 
Current Position 

 
3. When a new Company contacts the Sales team to enquire about a booking, the 

team investigate them to understand their financial position. If the potential 
value of the booking is under £15,000 then the Sales team use the Barbican’s 
credit checking service (www.creditsafeuk.com) to review whether they are 
credit worthy. There is a simple traffic light system used and they should only 
contract with Companies who have a rating of A or B. 

 

4. If the booking is over £15,000 then the sales team refer the company to the 
Finance team who will then review their financial statements in more detail. 

 

5. If they pass the above review process, a standard contract is then issued which 
has been approved by the Comptroller & City Solicitor’s Department, along with 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7

http://www.creditsafeuk.com/


a deposit invoice (100% of room hire). In order for the event to go ahead the 
signed contract and 100% of the hire fee needs to be paid before the event 
date. 

 
6. When events are booked at short notice this can be changed to 100% of the 

total invoice (hire and catering). 

 
7. After the event, any additional charges are added to the booking by the event 

manager and then settled on the system. This should happen within one week 
of the event. Finance then raises a final invoice, including the catering figures, 
which is due to be paid within 30 days. 

 
8. Finance review debt on a regular basis, chasing individual debts either direct 

with the Company or via the event manager, depending on the relationship with 
them and the size of the debt. Once a month, a full list of Business Events debt 
is sent over to the Heads of Business Events and Event Management for them 
to review/action. 

 
9. Any up and coming events within the next month that have outstanding 

deposits are flagged so that they can liaise with the Companies for payment 
whilst finalising arrangements. 

 
10. Any debts which remain unpaid after 90 days are provided for in the accounts. 

Unrecovered debts are passed on to the Comptroller & City Solicitor’s 
Department. The timing of this is dependent on the debt total, any queries 
attached to the debt, or the risk assessed on each debt. 

 
Appendices 
 
None. 
 
Niki Cornwell 
Head of Finance 
 
T: 020 7382 6119 
E:Niki.Cornwell@barbican.org.uk 

 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Outstanding Actions
	5 Internal Audit Update
	Update report October_2015_16 Planned Reviews as at 29_09_15

	6 Bribery Act 2010
	7 Process for contracting Commercial Clients
	11 Non Public Minutes
	12 Risk Register
	RR Covalent
	Risk Register


